
ARGYLL AND BUTE COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP 
 

 
 
 
 

 
A meeting of the ARGYLL AND BUTE COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP will be held in 
the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on FRIDAY, 2 JULY 2004 at 11:00 AM. 
 
 

Coffee will be available from 10.45am 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES 

 
 2. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 MARCH 2004 (Pages 1 – 4) 

 
 3. MATTERS ARISING 

 
 4. PRESENTATION BY ERIK JESPERSEN AND JUDITH ILLSLEY ON THE 

CLINICAL STRATEGY FOR NHS ARGYLL AND CLYDE (Pages 5 – 12) 
 

 5. KEY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

  (a) CPP Transitional Structure - Bute & Cowal Pilot (Andrew Campbell)  
 

  (b) Integration of SIPs - Statement of Readiness (Muriel Kupris) (Pages 13 - 20) 
 

  (c) Partnership Communications Plan (Andrew Campbell) (Pages 21 - 24) 
 

 6. COMMUNITY PLANNING ISSUES 
 

  (a) Citizen's Panel - New Tenders (Lolita Lavery)  
 

  (b) Results of 7th Questionnaire to Citizens Panel (Andrew Campbell) (Pages 25 - 
30) 

 
E1  (c) CPP Budget - End of Year Spend Report (Lolita Lavery) (Pages 31 - 32) 

 
  (d) Update on New CPP Priorities (Theme Group Leaders)  

 
  (e) Feedback on Meeting with Scottish Executive (Lolita Lavery)  

 
 7. BETTER NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES FUND - YEAR 4 LOCAL OUTCOME 

AGREEMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY BEYOND YEAR 4 (JAMES MCLELLAN) 
(Pages 33 – 42) 

 

Public Document Pack



 8. DRAFT COMMUNITY LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY (JIM 
MCCROSSAN) (Pages 43 – 46) 

 
 9. PARTNERSHIP ISSUES/CONCERNS TO BE DISCUSSED/TAKEN FORWARD 

BY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING:  FRIDAY 5 NOVEMBER 2004 
 

E1 This Report is Private  
 

A buffet lunch will be provided after the meeting 



 
MINUTES of MEETING of ARGYLL AND BUTE COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP held in 

the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD  
on FRIDAY, 5 MARCH 2004  

 
 

Present:  
 

Councillor Allan Macaskill (Chair) Carl Olivarius, Argyll and Bute Council 
Councillor Robin Banks Bill Dalrymple, Loch Lomond and the Trossachs 
James McLellan, Argyll and Bute Council National Park 
Lolita Lavery, Community Planning Partnership Josephine Stojak, NHS Argyll and Clyde 
Jon Pickering, Scottish Centre for Social Justice Donald MacVicar, Argyll and Bute Council 
Jenny Spratt, Scottish Centre for Social Justice Dougie Dunlop, Argyll and Bute Council 
Joan Inglis, Tourist Board Jacqui MacLeod, Crofters Commission 
Raymond Park, Strathclyde Police Hilda McGonagall, Argyll and the Islands 
Neil Wallace, Strathclyde Police Enterprise 
Andrew Campbell, Scottish Natural Heritage Alan Milstead, Argyll and the Islands Enterprise 
Douglas Trigg, Association of Argyll and Bute 
Community Councils 

David Hutchison, Strathclyde Fire Brigade 
Alison Debling, Argyll and Bute Council 

John Mungall, NHS Argyll and Clyde Sandra McGlynn, Argyll and Bute Council 
David Fife Jackson, West Loch Fyne Community 
Council 

Ian Love, Argyll and Bute Council 
Shane Rankin, Crofters Commission 

Joe Hughes, Luing Community Council       Erik Jesperson, NHS Argyll and Clyde 
Jim Clinton, Bute Community Links Nick Purdy, Forestry Commission Scotland 
Lynn Smillie, Argyll and Bute Council  
  
 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES 
 
 Councillor Allan Macaskill welcomed everyone to the meeting and introduced Shane  Rankin 

and Jacqui MacLeod of the Crofters Commission and Bill Dalrymple of the National Park who 
were attending for the first time. 
 
Apologies were accepted from the following people:- 
 
Bob McIntosh, Forestry Commission Scotland 
Frances Webster, Careers Scotland 
Jim McCrossan, Argyll and Bute Council 
Moir Nelson, SEPA 
Alan Cumming, Ministry of Defence 
Jack Martin, Jobcentre Plus 
James Fraser, Tourist Board 
David Dowie, Communities Scotland 
Sue Nash, Argyll CVS 
Alan MacDougall, Fyne Homes 
Patricia Keenan, Argyll and Bute Council 
Anne Clark, Islay and Jura CVS 
Chris Thomas, Scottish Enterprise Dunbartonshire 
Mitch Roger, Strathclyde Police 
Karen Murray, NHS Argyll and Clyde 
Alasdair Oatts, Argyll and Bute Care & Repair 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



 
2. PRESENTATION BY IAN LOVE ON THE COUNCIL'S LOCAL PLAN 
 
 The Head of Statutory Plans gave a presentation on the newly prepared consultative draft of the 

Argyll and Bute Local Plan which replaces the 8 adopted local plans covering most of Argyll 
and Bute.  The Chair advised that the consultation period would end on 12 March 2004 and that 
a finalised plan would be prepared during 2004 (subject to any further consultation process that 
may be required to comply with the statutory provisions for the adoption of the Local Plan). 
 

3. PRESENTATION BY ERIK JESPERSEN ON THE NEW GENERAL MEDICAL 
SERVICES CONTRACT 

 
 Erik Jespersen gave a presentation on the new GP contract implications for Argyll and Bute 

which included addressing recruitment problems in General Practice, rewarding Quality Practice 
and better Chronic Disease Management.  Erik advised that the contract had to go through a 
public consultation exercise and was seeking the support of Local Politicians and MSPs.  James 
McLellan asked that Erik provide an update at a future meeting of the Community Planning 
Partnership on the progression of the proposals. 
 

4. PRESENTATION BY THE SCOTTISH CENTRE FOR SOCIAL JUSTICE ON 
DEPRIVATION AND SOCIAL EXCLUSION IN ARGYLL AND BUTE 

 
 There was a presentation on “Deprivation and Social Exclusion in Argyll and Bute” by the 

Scottish Centre for Research on Social Justice.  The Partnership discussed the report submitted 
by the Scottish Centre and a question and answer session followed.  It was agreed that in terms 
of taking this work forward, the 3rd Theme Group would be tasked with discussing  the issues 
contained in the report and submitting proposals to the Partnership. 
 

5. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14 NOVEMBER 2003 
 
 The Minutes were accepted as an accurate record of the meeting held on 14 November 2004. 

 
6. MATTERS ARISING 
 
 Andrew Campbell thanked the Chair for the support of the Partnership in securing money for the 

NADAIR Project from the Heritage Lottery Fund. 
 

7. KEY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 (a) PROPOSED CPP TRANSITIONAL STRUCTURE (ANDREW CAMPBELL) 

 
  Andrew Campbell advised of the proposed Community Planning Partnership transitional 

structure which included the remit, membership, accountability and frequency of meetings 
of the various components of the top level and area levels.  The Partnership was invited to 
discuss and agree the various components of the structure to enable implementation to take 
place. 
 
Having looked at the membership of the various components of the Community Planning 
structure at each of the levels, it was agreed that Community Representatives should reflect 
the main themes or priorities that the Community Planning Partnership is trying to address 
such as community regeneration, transition of young people and access to services and that 
it is left to each appropriate level to decide what themes or priorities the Community 
Representatives should represent.  It was further agreed that the proposal for the Bute and 

Page 2



Cowal Pilot depicting the supporting staff structure be noted at this stage. 
 
 

 (b) PARTNERSHIP COMMUNICATIONS PLAN (ANDREW CAMPBELL) 
 

  Andrew Campbell advised that a Partnership Communications Plan was necessary to raise 
the profile of Community Planning and firmly embed it within Partner organisations.  It 
was agreed to establish a small working group of PR professionals to take forward the 
preparation of the Communications Plan, and that the group comprise the Council (Chair), 
NHS Argyll and Clyde, Strathclyde Police, Highlands and Islands Enterprise, Communities 
Scotland, Scottish Natural Heritage and the Tourist Board.   
 
 

 (c) DRAFT 2004/2005 CPP BUDGET AND FUNDING FROM THE SCOTTISH 
EXECUTIVE FOR DEVELOPING COMMUNITY PLANNING (ANDREW 
CAMPBELL) 

 
  The Partnership discussed the draft 2004/2005 Community Planning Partnership budget 

together with the proposed contributions from Partners.  It was agreed to go forward with 
Table 1 which illustrated a 3% inflationary increase being applied equally to  the 
contributions of all current contributing Partners.  James McLellan advised that the 
Management Committee should look into splitting the budget for 2004/05 into a central 
fund and one for specific projects.  Lolita Lavery highlighted that the Scottish Executive 
were expecting all Community Planning Partnerships to be involved in discussions as to 
how they would be spending the resources which had been allocated to them.  Lolita 
advised that the Partnership would be using the funds for the Communications Plan and for 
capacity building (training) initiatives identified through Bute and Cowal pilot which was 
agreed. 
 
 

8. COMMUNITY PLANNING ISSUES 
 
 (a) LAUNCH OF 'DRIVESAFE' CAMPAIGN (CARL OLIVARIUS) 

 
  Carl Olivarius updated the meeting on the ‘DRIVESafe’ campaign and advised that it 

would be officially launched on 13 April 2004 and asked the Partnership to support the 
campaign.  It was agreed to approve the recommendations contained within the report with 
the addition of the NHS Communications Team at 4.10.  
 
 

 (b) UPDATE ON NEW CPP PRIORITIES (THEME GROUP LEADERS) 
 

  The Theme Group Leaders spoke to their reports on the new Community Planning 
Partnership priorities and on how the groups proposed to take these forward.  The 
Partnership noted the Actions contained within the reports and that the Joint Health 
Improvement Plan was being revised to reflect these Actions. 
 
 

 (c) CITIZENS' PANEL (LOLITA LAVERY) 
 

  Lolita Lavery advised that the 7th Citizens’ Panel questionnaire which revisited the 1st 
questionnaire  had been issued at the end of February and that the results would be 
discussed at the next meeting of the Community Planning Partnership.  It was noted that 

Page 3



the results should be available to partners in advance of the meeting and so should allow a 
discussion of the results and the implications. Lolita also mentioned that the current 
Consultant’s contract had come to an end and  that a small working group had been 
established to prepare a brief for appointing a new consultant. 
 
 

 (d) UPDATE ON JOINT HEALTH IMPROVEMENT PLAN (JOHN MUNGALL) 
 

  Dealt with at 8(b) above. 
 
 

9. ARGYLL & THE ISLES LOCAL ECONOMIC STRATEGY (ALAN MILSTEAD) 
 
 Alan Milstead gave the background to the Strategy which covered the area for  Argyll and the 

Islands Enterprise and mentioned that the Strategy had previously been agreed by the Argyll and 
the Isles Enterprise and Argyll and Bute Council.  The Partnership considered the strategy and 
after various questions agreed to adopt the strategy as submitted. 
 

10. AOCB 
 
 Alan Milstead stated that having the papers for the meeting issued electronically was an 

excellent idea, but asked if the papers could be published on the Community Planning 
Partnership’s website rather than on the Council’s website.  Lolita advised that in the short term 
the papers would sit in the Council’s Committee system but that longer term arrangements were 
being investigated to put the papers on the Partnership’s website. 
 

11. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 The next Community Planning Partnership meeting will be held on Friday 2 July 2004 in the 

Council Chamber, Kilmory, Lochgilphead. 
 

 

Page 4



Agenda Item 4Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



ARGYLL AND BUTE COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP 

COMMUNITY REGENERATION:  STATEMENT OF READINESS JUNE 2004 

INTEGRATION OF ARGYLL AND BUTE SOCIAL INCLUSION PARTNERSHIP WITH ARGYLL AND BUTE 
COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP. 

Introduction 

The Argyll and Bute Community Planning Partnership (CPP) and the Argyll and Bute Social Inclusion 
Partnership (SIP) have prepared this Statement of Readiness in response to the guidance published by 
Communities Scotland for integration of Social Inclusion Partnerships with the Community Planning framework. 

The two partnerships created a Community Regeneration Implementation Group to merge strategic priorities and 
structures. They view this as a clear commitment to close the opportunity gap for deprived communities and to 
integrate Social Inclusion Partnership structures and resources into the community planning framework. 

The Community Planning Partnership is an effective and efficient Partnership. 22 Partners work together through 
3 theme groups to tackle priorities identified through the partnership’s Citizen’s Panel. The three theme groups 
are:

Theme 1: Promoting health and wellbeing 
Theme 2: Improving opportunities for learning, employment and skills development 
Theme 3: Sustaining our communities, culture and environment 

This partnership framework has informed the Social Inclusion Partnership’s work. The Social Inclusion 
Partnership has identified similar priorities through various needs analysis exercises in each of its five areas. 

The Community Planning Partnership reviewed its structure, role and purpose in 2003 following changes arising 
from the Local Government Scotland Act and the ‘Closing the Gap’ statement. The Implementation Group was a 
key contributor to this process. Specifically, the partnership looked at a new structure to enhance community 
engagement and bring regeneration to the centre of its work. 

The Community Planning Partnership’s third theme group will develop a Community Regeneration Strategy 
because tackling disadvantage is an important facet of sustainable communities. This group will also have a 
major role in the monitoring of Regeneration Outcome Agreements agreed by partners. 

The independent evaluation of the Social Inclusion Partnership highlights the commitment of funds and support 
in-kind by partners to tackle disadvantage through the Community Planning Partnership. The Social Inclusion 
Partnership structure is unusual with five small areas spread throughout Argyll and Bute: 

Social Inclusion Partnership Area Population 

Dalintober (including Millknowe) in Campbeltown 1229 

Ardenslate (including the Glebe and West Milton) in Dunoon 1830 

Kirkmichael (including Craigendoran) in Helensburgh 1390 

Soroba in Oban 914

Ballochgoy on Bute 471

The evaluation noted that these areas have the common problems of social exclusion – e.g. poor health, limited 
educational attainment and environmental problems. They also have additional problems specific to rural areas – 
e.g. distance from good job opportunities, poor public transport options and a lack of affordable housing close to 
job opportunities. 

The evaluation highlighted that the Social Inclusion Partnership objectives have been redefined over time and 
are now consistent with the objectives of the Community Plan. There is also clear evidence that the Social 
Inclusion Partnership has provided good value for money with positive outcomes for individuals and a high 
leverage on project activity (78%). 

The Community Planning Partnership is committed to work with all communities throughout Argyll and Bute and 
to facilitate regeneration of communities in need. 

Agenda Item 5bPage 13



1. Strategic Approach – Focus on Disadvantage 

The Implementation Group commissioned the Scottish Centre for Research on Social Justice to undertake a 
quantitative and qualitative study of poverty and disadvantage to improve the quality of information available for 
Argyll and Bute. The study was based on the Scottish Index for Multiple Deprivation (SIMD). The study produced 
an authoritative account of deprivation and social exclusion that will inform internal decision making processes 
and assist in securing resources. 

Argyll and Bute is not highly deprived compared to other local authority areas, but there are still significant 
numbers of people in deprivation (approx 11,400 income deprived and 12,200 employment deprived). The extent 
of disadvantage and deprivation in Argyll and Bute is illustrated below: 

Argyll & Bute is 15
th
 on the National Deprivation Index, although there are no wards in the worst 10% in 

Scotland.

3 wards are in the worst 15% - they are located in Bute and Cowal, one of which, Ardenslate, is ranked as 
more deprived than Parkhead, Glasgow. 

Whilst the most deprived wards have much higher rates of deprivation, deprived individuals are found in all 
wards. 

Significantly, Argyll and Bute has the second highest access deprivation in Scotland. This access deprivation 
compounds rural poverty and there is insufficient attention paid to this in terms of resource allocation 
because of the low SIMD weighting (10%). 

Argyll and Bute has high levels of low paid and seasonal employment. This reinforces previous indications 
that rural deprivation has a lower profile than in urban areas because this pattern of employment can hide 
poverty and again is not sufficiently acknowledged in the SIMD.

The current unemployment rate is 2.9% for Argyll and Bute, but ranges from 3.8% to 5.6% in the key wards 
in the Social Inclusion Partnership areas. 

There are an estimated 15,600 workless households in Argyll and Bute. 

Approximately 11% of pupils in Argyll and Bute receive free school meals, but this rises to 37% in the Social 
Inclusion Partnership areas. 

The deprivation study highlighted that 66% of all deprivation within Argyll and Bute exists within 5 of the major 
towns: Campbeltown, Dunoon, Rothesay, Oban and Helensburgh. However, there are areas of deprivation 
within each town that are not included within current Social Inclusion Partnership boundaries. The Community 
Planning Partnership decided in early 2004 to extend the boundaries to include other key areas of deprivation in 
the interest of equity and social justice.  

The Campbeltown area of Dalintober/Millknowe will extend to include other key areas of Campbeltown that 
are deprived.  
The Helensburgh area of Kirkmichael/Craigendoran will extend to include Rosneath and Garelochhead 
areas. 
The Dunoon area of Ardenslate, West Milton and the Glebe will extend to include other key output areas in 
central Dunoon.  
The Bute area of Ballochgoy will extend to cover other key areas of deprivation in Bute.  
The Oban area of Soroba will extend to tackle other key areas of deprivation in Oban. 

2. Partnership Investment in Tackling Disadvantage 

Each of the 5 Social Inclusion Partnership areas has an Area Development Group (ADG). These are the focus 
for coordinating partnership working to tackle deprivation. The Community Planning Partnership decided in 
March 2004 that the Area Development Groups will become the main partnership mechanism for tackling 
deprivation across the wider deprived areas identified by the deprivation study. 

The Area Development Groups’ business planning process in 2003 identified four key priorities for these 
communities that would also make the current Social Inclusion Partnership work more sustainable. They were: 

Health and wellbeing 
Employability
Infrastructure and environment 
Community capacity building 

Page 14



The Area Development Groups regrouped these into three areas that are key priorities across the five Social 
Inclusion Partnership areas. The groupings are: 

Health and Wellbeing 
Employment and Lifelong Learning 
Infrastructure of Communities and the Environment 

The three groups mirror the Community Planning Partnership priorities. The Area Development Groups have 
changed their structure to address these priorities. Each Area Development Group now has three sub-groups 
organised on a thematic base. The sub-groups will set the Regeneration Outcome Agreements for deprived 
communities and these will be monitored by the Area Development Group and the Community Planning 
Partnership (via the Community Planning Partnership’s third theme group). 

The evaluation highlighted the significant input from voluntary organisations and community representatives. The 
evaluation also commented on the good balance between central and local structures together with improved 
partnership working.  

The evaluation report summarised the financial commitment from partners as: 

In-kind funding from partners in 2002/03 was worth over £250,000 to the Social Inclusion Partnership. 

Additional, identifiable, cash expenditure by Social Inclusion Partnership partners in Social Inclusion 
Partnership areas amounted to over £300,000, over and above the Social Inclusion Partnership ‘sown 
funding.

The Kirkmichael/ Craigendoran Area Development Group has secured European funding of almost £250,000 
for social economy development activity in the area. 

The structure for integrating the Social Inclusion Partnership into the overall Community Planning Partnership is 
illustrated below: 

The Area Development Groups will produce the Regeneration Outcome Agreements for each area by March 
2005. These will reflect local and Community Planning Partnership priorities. 

Consultation is already taking place with the newly identified output areas for the extended Social Inclusion 
Partnership areas. These will be included in the Regeneration Outcome Agreements. The business planning 
priorities have been identified through baseline analysis and consultation. They will form part of each 
Regeneration Outcome Agreement and will enable the Community Planning Partnership to evaluate overall 
progress. The Regeneration Outcome Agreements will meet Social Justice targets. 

Community Planning 

Partnership

Theme
Group 1 

Theme
Group 2 

Theme
Group 3 

CPP Management 

Committee 

Community 
Representatives 

Forum

SIP Board 

Five Area Development Groups (ADGs) 

Three themed sub-groups for each ADG 

Page 15



3. Effective Community Engagement 

The Community Planning Partnership’s original structure did not address Community Regeneration and was 
poorly equipped to engage effectively with communities at the local level.  The Partnership has adopted a new 
structure to localise community planning and widen community involvement by aiming for 50% community 
representation at each level of the new structure. 

Community engagement is a real strength of the Social Inclusion Partnership.  A key reason is that the 
Partnership has been underpinned by the Community Learning and Development Strategy from the outset. This 
will continue as the Social Inclusion Partnership moves into the wider community planning context. 

The Community Planning Partnership wants to integrate and build on the real progress that has been made with 
community engagement in the current Social Inclusion Partnership areas.  The Community Representatives 
Forum will continue within the new community planning structure, with enhanced links to key groups.  

Social Inclusion Partnership 
Each Area Development Group currently sends two community representatives to the Social Inclusion 
Partnership Board. This strategic board comprises 50% community representatives and 50% agencies.  

Community Representatives Forum, 
This forum is an independently constituted organisation that has attracted separate funding. The Community 
Representatives Forum will continue to exist under the Community Planning Partnership third theme group 
banner. The Chair and Vice Chair of the Community Representatives Forum will be members of the third theme 
group. The Community Planning Partnership believes this as an effective way to link the Community Planning 
Partnership, Social Inclusion Partnership and engage with the communities in the Area Development Group 
areas. 

Transitional Pilot 
The Community Planning Partnership is currently planning a pilot to localise community planning within Argyll 
and Bute. This will test the effectiveness of a local area based structure to deliver a comprehensive range of 
partner services to local communities. The pilot will comprise a two-tier structure: 

A number of neighbourhood (level 1) community forums. These forums will be a major focus for encouraging 
communities to articulate their needs. Two Area Development Groups lie within the pilot area. 
Community needs and aspirations will feed into an area (level 2) structure. Representatives from the 
community and public agencies will translate local proposals into a realistic and comprehensive area 
strategy supported by appropriate investment plans and outcome agreements. 

Capacity building and developmental support to the two Levels within the transitional structure are crucial. The 
precise nature of this support has still to be confirmed, but is likely to be provided by the following organisations:  

Cowal and Bute – Community Planning Partnership Pilot 

Level 2 
Coordination by Argyll & Bute Council 

(via the Area Corporate Services Manager) 

East and West Cowal 

L
e

v
e

l 
1

 

A
re

a (Area outside 
the National 

Park)

(National Park 
Area) 

Dunoon Bute 
Children and Young 

Person Group 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
S

u
p

p
o

rt

Argyll CVS 

Loch Lomond 
and the 
Trossachs 
National Park 

The local Area 
Development 
Group 

The local Area 
Development 
Group 

Community Regeneration 
and Dialogue Youth 

The implementation of the pilot is a developmental process for all partners involved. The Community Planning 
Partnership recognises the importance of establishing effective information sharing and reporting mechanisms.  

Page 16



Funding has already been obtained from Communities Scotland for one part-time worker to support one of the 
level one groups (via Argyll CVS). The pilot will run over a two-year period. If successful, the structure will be 
introduced in the remaining areas of Argyll and Bute. 

Community Learning and Development 
The community capacity building and engagement of Social Inclusion Partnership projects has always been 
delivered in partnership with Community Learning. This process has worked well and will continue when the 
Social Inclusion Partnership is integrated into the Community Planning Partnership. The revised Community 
Learning Strategy will highlight how community capacity building underpins effective community engagement 
through the Area Development Groups. The strategy will address the following: 

Implementation of priorities for adult learning and for young people identified through the Regeneration 
Outcome Agreements. 
Implementation of priorities for adult learning and for young people identified through the Social Inclusion 
Partnership Business Plans. 
Building community capacity to implement the Community Planning Pilot in Cowal and Bute 
Building community capacity to support the extension of the Social Inclusion Partnership Areas and the 
Regeneration Outcome Agreements. 
Consideration of geographical targeting in light of the deprivation study commissioned by the Community 
Planning Partnership. 

Social Economy and the Voluntary Sector 
A new Voluntary Sector policy is being developed by a joint working group of council officers and Voluntary 
sector representatives. This will reinforce the sector’s role within the Community Planning process in Argyll and 
Bute. The Community Planning Partnership is committed to support and raise the profile of the social economy. 

Argyll and Bute has the second highest level of volunteering in Scotland. A recent study by Argyll CVS estimated 
that this sector contributed £28 million to the economy of Argyll and Bute, creating 600 jobs. Much of this work is 
targeted at disadvantage. 

Housing and Neighbourhoods 
Tenants and owners representatives play an important role in improving their environment and encouraging 
agencies to improve or expand service delivery within the existing Social Inclusion Partnership areas. 

The Social Inclusion Partnership evaluation found that neighbourhood satisfaction rose from 68% in 2001 to 79% 
in 2003 and the proportion of people afraid to go out at night reduced from 36% to 30%.  Community 
representatives are bringing the concerns of their communities to the Area Development Groups for action 
across Argyll and Bute. 

4. Monitoring and Evaluation 

The Community Planning Partnership Management Committee monitors and evaluates the strategic objectives 
of the Community Planning Partnership. Future monitoring of the Social Inclusion Partnership areas will be 
based on the Regeneration Outcome Agreements and business plans for the Area Development Group areas. 
The Community Planning Partnership’s third theme group will monitor the Social Inclusion Partnership process 
as part of its remit for sustaining communities. The other Community Planning Partnership theme groups or 
Management Committee will be involved in the process as needs demand. 

At a local level Area Development Groups will have a responsibility for monitoring Regeneration Outcome 
Agreements on a 3-monthly basis and feed this into the appropriate strategic theme group who will then report to 
the Community Planning Partnership Management Committee. 

Financial Management 
The Community Planning Partnership recognises the vital importance of robust financial management and 
monitoring arrangements.  Argyll and Bute Council has provided the role of grant recipient on behalf of SIPs. In 
doing so the Council has ensured that systems are in place at both programme and project levels to provide 
appropriate safeguards of Governance arrangements and use of public funds.  Consequently, we have in place: 

Annual SIP budget and project financial estimates 
Four-weekly budget monitoring 
Quarterly reviews of project funding 
Quarterly grant claims 
Annual reports and monitoring statements 

These systems are capable of being adapted as necessary to maintain an efficient and effective stewardship of 
SIP funds on behalf of the Community Planning Partnership. 

Page 17



Outcome Agreements 
The SIPs are currently developing their local Regeneration Outcome Agreements, which will feed into the 
overarching Regeneration Outcome Agreement.  Communities are involved in developing these through the 
ADGs and the Community Representative Fora to ensure the targets and outcomes mirror the needs of the 
community. 

Baseline information is in place in the SIP areas as a result of regular local surveys and Citizen Panel surveys 
conducted by the Community Planning Partnership. This information is an important component of future 
monitoring of progress towards agreed targets. 

The full Community Planning Partnership will monitor Regeneration Outcome Agreements annually as part of its 
normal review and planning processes. 

Conclusion 

The Argyll and Bute Community Planning Partnership has been working towards the integration of the Social 
Inclusion Partnership since the publication of the ‘Closing the Gap’ Statement.  Significant progress has been 
made to: 

Clarify and target areas of deprivation that require resource allocation 
Broaden current Social Inclusion Partnership structures to secure additional partnership involvement 
Expand and continue good community engagement using the Community Learning and Development 
Strategy to underpin this process 
Develop a new Pilot structure to localise community planning and secure effective community engagement 
across Argyll and Bute 
Set up mechanisms and structures to monitor and evaluate Regeneration Outcome Agreements 

Having completed this work the Argyll and Bute Community Planning Partnership is in a strong position to take 
forward the integration of the Social Inclusion Partnership by March 2005. 

Page 18



SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

Community Planning Partners

The Argyll and Bute Community Planning Partnership was launched on 2 April 2001 and includes the following 
organisations: 

Argyll and Bute Council 

Argyll and the Islands Enterprise 

Argyll CVS 

Association of Community Councils 

Bute Community Links 

Caledonian MacBrayne 

Careers Scotland 

Communities Scotland 

Jobcentre Plus 

Forestry Commission Scotland 

Housing Associations 

Islay and Jura CVS 

Loch Lomond & the Trossachs National Park 

Ministry of Defence 

NHS Argyll & Clyde 

Scottish Enterprise Dunbartonshire 

Scottish Environment Protection Agency 

Scottish Natural Heritage 

Scottish Water 

Strathclyde Fire Brigade 

Strathclyde Police 

Tourist Board   
   

Community Regeneration Implementation Group 

The Community Regeneration Implementation Group was set up to develop a new Community Planning 
framework to facilitate integration of the Social Inclusion Partnership and deliver the principles behind the 
Scottish Executive’s Regeneration Statement and Local Government in Scotland Act. 

The Community Regeneration Implementation Group comprises the following organisations/ representatives: 

Argyll & Bute Council 

Argyll & the Islands Enterprise 

NHS Argyll & Clyde 

Argyll CVS 

Communities Scotland 

Social Inclusion Partnership 

Community Learning Partnership 

Dialogue Youth/Young Scot 

Community Representatives 

Progress to date includes the organisation of the Community Planning Review Day, the development of an 
outline Community Planning Partnership structure and the commissioning of research to develop a Deprivation 
Index for Argyll and Bute. 

Page 19



Citizens’ Panel

The Partnership has a duty to promote greater public consultation and involvement in the decision-making 
processes of the various public agencies and, to this end, established a Citizens’ Panel of 1000 local people in 
2001.

Details of Questionnaires Issued 

No. Date Issued Topic Response Rate 

1 June 2001 Satisfaction with public services in Argyll and Bute, what 
issues are important for Argyll and Bute and also what the 
Community Planning Partnership’s priorities for action 
should be 

69%

2 October 2001 Road maintenance, road safety and transport related 
issues

66%

3 June 2002 Environmental issues, waste management, renewable 
energy and Community Councils 

68%

4 October 2002 Education, training and skills development, Library 
services and Council services  

63%

5 January 2003 Improved Access to public services 63% 

6 May 2003 Health related issues 68% 

7 February 2004 Revisited 1
st
 questionnaire and also included a section on 

the draft Local Housing Strategy and Community Safety 
issues

68%

Page 20



ARGYLL AND BUTE COMMUNITY PLANNING PARTNERSHIP 
COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY (INTERMEDIATE) 

The following report was discussed by the Management Committee on 16 June 2004. 

1. Summary 

1.1 This paper proposes a way forward and a timetable for the development of a detailed and costed one 
year communications strategy for the Argyll and Bute Community Planning Partnership. 

1.2 It also proposes a number of actions which can be undertaken during that development period. 

2.  Background 

2.1  At its meeting in March 2004, the Argyll and Bute CPP Management Committee agreed to establish a 
Communications Working Group whose brief is to develop and recommend a comprehensive 
communications strategy. 

2.2  The Working Group to comprise of PR representatives from Argyll and Bute Council (Chair), SNH, 
AILLST Tourist Board, NHS, Strathclyde Police, HIE and Communities Scotland. 

2.3  An inaugural meeting of the Group took place on 26 April 2004 and the proposals in this paper are a 
result of the discussion, which took place at that meeting. 

2.4  I would also like to acknowledge the contribution made to that discussion by East  Dunbartonshire CPP 
and  Perth and Kinross CPP who gave their time and shared the results of their work. 

3. Current Position 

3.1 Whilst to date, the Partnership has not formally adopted a comprehensive communications strategy, it has 
nevertheless an advantageous foundation on which to build. In particular: 

a. IDENTITY 
Argyll and Bute CPP established its own identity and logo, distinct from that of its constituent members, 
from the outset. 

b. WEBSITE 
The partnership established its own website with a distinct domain name at an early stage, and whilst the 
site requires some development work, it has contributed greatly to both the sense of identity and the 
dissemination of basic information about the partnership 

c. CITIZENS PANEL 
The Citizens Panel and its regular response to questionnaires has provided a good basis for public 
understand of the work of the partnership. 

d. MEDIA COVERAGE 
The partnership has put out a number of news releases in its own right, and these have received positive, 
if somewhat limited, media coverage. 

e. PUBLICATIONS 
To date two publications about the work of the partnership have been distributed to every household in 
the area. 

3.2 The following proposals and action plan aim to build on the above. 

4.  PROPOSALS 

4.1  The Communications Working Group agreed that it is fundamental to the success of any future 
communications strategy that it be wholly owned by the Partnership (as opposed to the Working Group). 

Agenda Item 5cPage 21



The Communications Working Group recommends that a half-day workshop be arranged; aimed at 
mapping relationships (where partners have co-terminus boundaries and where we share with other 
partnerships), identifying target audiences, key messages and priorities. 

4.2  A comprehensive one year communications strategy should be developed based on the outcomes from 
the workshop. This strategy to include a clear evaluation and review process, which should lead to the 
development of a further strategy, possibly covering three years. 

4.3  The recommended extended lead-in time to the adoption of a comprehensive communications strategy 
should not preclude actions, which will build on and improve current communications practices (please 
see action plan for details) 

Lynda Syed 
Communications Manager 
Argyll and Bute Council 
May 31 2004 

Page 22



Objective Aim Action By Whom When 

Strategy 
Development 

1. Map relationships 
2. Identify key 

messages 
3. Identify target 

audiences 
4. Identify priorities 

Half day workshop 
or seminar 

Partner representatives 

Categories or 
nominations to be 
advised 

By end July 
2004 or to be 
advised 

Identify existing 
channels of 
communication e.g. 
staff newsletters 

Produce and 
circulate pro forma 
to each partner 
organisation  

Communications 
Working Group 

By end July 
2004 or to 
coincide with 
above

Produce 
comprehensive one 
year communications 
strategy based on 
outcomes from 
workshop and results 
of research 

Convene meetings 
of the 
Communications 
Working Group 

Chair of Group, 
members of Group 

End of 
September 
2004 or to be 
advised 

Improve and 
Build on 
Existing
Channels of 
Communication 

    

1.  Website Improve quality and 
availability of 
information on-line 

1. Transfer and 
rebuild current 
website onto 
dynamic CMC 

2. Establish SLA 
to ensure timely 
updates 

Partnership Manager 
with ABC 
Communications Team 

End September 
2004

2.  Media
Relations 

Develop a more 
proactive approach to 
news

1. Identify 
“newsworthy” 
stories through 
attendance at 
meetings/ 
briefings  

2. Organise  
       events/photo 

opportunities as 
appropriate 

Members of 
Communications 
Working Group 

With immediate 
effect 

Other 
To raise awareness of 
the CPP and its work to 
date amongst 
employees key to the 
successful 
implementation of a 
communications 
strategy

Develop and deliver 
an awareness 
raising programme 
aimed at e.g. middle 
management and 
delivered through a 
cross-partner events 
or series of events  

Whilst this would lie 
within the remit of the 
existing Training Group, 
the Communications 
Working Group felt that 
it would be a key 
element in the 
implementation of any 
communications 
strategy and therefore 
felt it should be included  
in the intermediate 
strategy

End of 
September 
2004 then 
ongoing as 
appropriate. 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



RESULTS OF 7
TH

 QUESTIONNAIRE TO CITIZENS’ PANEL 

The report on the results of the 7
th
 Questionnaire to the Citizens’ Panel as well as comparative data between the 

1
st
 and 7

th
 Questionnaires was distributed to all Partners on 24 May 2004.  The attached slides briefly summarise 

the findings of the Questionnaire. 

As each Partner has been afforded the opportunity to distribute and discuss the results within their respective 
organisations, the discussions at the CPP meeting will centre around what the results mean for each 
organisation as well as how each organisation will be using the results to inform and improve service delivery. 

Lolita Lavery 
June 2004 

Agenda Item 6bPage 25



Argyll and Bute 

Community Planning 

Partnership

Priorities/Issues for Argyll & Bute 

(Revisited 1st Questionnaire)

Housing 

Community Safety

Panel Profile and 

Response Rates

• Bute 80 49%

• Cowal 172 58%

• Helensburgh and Lomond 291 67%

• Isla, Jura, Colonsay, Gigha 39 72%

• Lorn 170 69%

• Mid Argyll and kintyre 200 57%

• Mull, Coll, Tiree, Lismore 59 76%

Methods of Receiving 

Information
» Present Preferred

• Local Newspapers 88% 40%

• Word of mouth 54% 7%

• Newsletters 41% 38%

• Information Leaflets 38% 32%

• Community Councils 26% 14%

• Councillors 19% 12%

• Radio 16% 11%

• Website 14% 22%

– Website 2001 – 6% present, 14% preferred

Active Involvement and 

Access to Internet

• 49% would like to become more active 

in decision making process (56% - 2001)

• Access to internet at home – 64% (47%)

• Access to internet at work – 31% (20%)

Satisfaction & Dissatisfaction 

with Services
» 2004 2001

SATISFIED WITH SERVICES

• Refuse collection 85% 73%

• Local doctor (GP) 83% 79%

• Fire service 81% 67%

• Post offices 81% 77%

• Access to woodlands and forests 76% 69%

DISSATISFIED WITH SERVICES

• Repairs to roads, footpaths, cycle paths 79% 76%

• Recreation and sports facilities 45% 40%

• Street cleaning/removal of litter 41% 46%

• Road safety 33% 33%

• Hospitals 33% 17%

Informed regarding 

Organisations
MOST INFORMED 2004 2001

• Argyll and Bute Council 67% 57%

• Strathclyde Police 58% 48%

• NHS Argyll and Clyde 54% 36%

• Tourist Board 53% 46%

• Caledonian MacBrayne 52% 44%

LEAST INFORMED

• Communities Scotland 53% 45%

• Argyll CVService 52% 56%

• Scottish Enterprise Dunbartonshire  47% 42%

• SEPA 45% 44%

• Argyll and the Islands Enterprise 45% 47%

Page 26



Statements Describing 

Argyll and Bute

• Attractive 64% 68%

• Remote 49% 44%

• Safe 47% 49%

• Stuck in the past 30% 34%

• Accessible 26% 31%

• Rundown 25% 25%

• Prosperous 17% 14%

• Enterprising 14% 14%

• Dull 11% 11%

• Caring 10% 11%

• Unfriendly 5% 4%

• Dangerous 2% 1%

How has the area changed

• Stayed the same 29% 32%

• Improved 24% 42%

• Got Worse 46% 26%

• Reasons given include empty shops, 
litter, young people hanging about, 
lack of investment, too many holiday 
homes

Issues of Importance

• Top 5 Issues 2004 2001

• Health 51% 53%

• Jobs 48% 56%

• Roads-Infrastructure 40% 33%

• Education 36% 46%

• Crime 32% 28%

Priorities for Argyll & Bute

• Promoting Health and Well Being

– 2004- 93%, 2001- 95%

• Improving Opportunities for Learning, 
Employment and Skills Development

– 2004 – 94%, 2001 – 97%

• Sustaining and Developing Argyll & 
Bute’s Communities, Culture and 
Environment

– 2004 – 92%, 2001 – 93%

Community Planning 

Priorities

• Promoting Health and Wellbeing

• Improving Opportunities for Learning, 

Employment and Skills Development

• Sustaining and Developing Argyll and 

Bute’s Communities, Culture and 

Environment

– Strong agreement regarding issues 

under each priority

Additional Priorities & Issues

Promoting  Health and Well-being

• More Police officers

• Drug and alcohol education

• Public transport to and from hospitals

• Good local hospital provision

Improving Opportunities for learning

• Improved road transport

• Promotion of rural business areas 

• Encourage tourism all year round

Sustaining Argyll and Bute’s communities

• Improved facilities for recycling

• Affordable housing for local people 

• Facilities for young people

• Adding to forestry

• Repair roads and pavements

Page 27



Housing Strategy

• Issues raised include affordability, 50% 

holiday homes and unimaginative 

properties

• “To secure an adequate supply of good 

quality, affordable housing to help 

sustain the development of all the 

communities that we serve”.- 92% 

agreement

Housing Themes

• Securing access to an adequate supply 
of affordable housing to meet current 
and future needs

• Addressing issues of quality and 
condition in all housing tenures

• Promoting community development, 
regeneration and sustainability

• Addressing the housing and support 
needs of vulnerable people and people 
with special needs

– 90%+ agreement with these themes

Top 5 Strategic Objectives

• Building strong, safe and attractive 
communities.

• Increasing housing choice by 
promoting and enabling a mix of 
housing tenures, types and sizes.

• Addressing issues of condition, quality 
and sustainability in the social rented 
housing sector .

• Supporting economic development.

• Addressing issues of fuel poverty and 
energy efficiency.

Other Issues or Problems

• Houses sold as holiday homes

• Having like minded people living together-
families, older people, people with 
disabilities

• Resources to bring housing up to a better 
standard

• Reduce scattered housing development

• More investment in social rented housing

• Brown field developments

• Enable independent living for vulnerable 
people

Housing Supply

• Housing to be built to satisfy needs of 

new households – 72% stating yes, with 

some built within main towns and some 

built in other areas

• Shortage of affordable housing – yes in 

all areas (35%), yes in some areas (44%)

• 61% state that private developers should 

have the responsibility for providing 

more affordable housing

Care and Support

• 88% agree that there is a need to 

increase the support available to 

enable people to stay in their own 

homes

Page 28



Community Safety

TOP 5 ISSUES

– Community Policing 57%

– Vandalism 52%

– Youth disorder 47%

– Road safety 47%

– Underage drinking 39%

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6cPage 31

Document is Restricted



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



BETTER NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES FUND – YEAR ‘4’ LOCAL OUTCOME AGREEMENT AND 
SUSTAINABILITY BEYOND YEAR 4 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1 This report appraises Community Planning Partners on the current and future status of the Better 
Neighbourhood Services Fund in Argyll and Bute. 

1.2 Funding from the Scottish Executive, initially for 3 years, has been extended to March 2006.  The 
initial allocation of £2.7m is available for the provision of services to October 2005.  An additional 
0.9m allows for services to be continued and rolled out to other parts of Argyll and Bute until March 
2006.

1.3 Within this report are recommendations for the extension of Better Neighbourhood Services, to be 
included in the Year ‘4’ Local Outcome Agreement as required by the Executive.  The 
recommendations have been formulated taking full account of the specific criteria and funding 
conditions set out by the Executive. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Community Planning Partnership endorse the proposal that on the basis of the guidance 
provided by the Scottish Executive and the requirement to link the additional expenditure to areas of 
deprivation, a proposal that the additional £900,000 be expended as follows: 

 (i)  Continue existing services on the 8 Atlantic islands and in South Kintyre from October 2005 
until March 2006. This will cost an estimated additional £87,550 over and above the budget 
provision of £805,579 for 05/06. 

(ii) The estimated balance £812,450 will be used to: 

a) Roll out older people’s services to 5 wards in Bute and Cowal which are identified as 
amongst the most deprived in Argyll and Bute in the social deprivation study recently 
commissioned by the Community Planning Partnership.   These wards are Bute North, 
Bute Central, Milton, Ardenslate and Holy Loch. 

b) Include the island of Lismore in the island project due to the problems of geographical 
isolation, the difficulties older people have accessing services and the high proportion of 
the population (35%) 50 people, aged over 65. 

c) Roll out support service models established by the Community Support Network in South 
Kintrye, to families with disabled children across Argyll and Bute.   

2.2 The Community Planning Partnership are asked to give early consideration to the   sustainability 
issues for the services developed by the Better Neighbourhood Services Fund and support the 
Council in its representations to the Executive to secure ongoing funding. 

2.3 As it is clear that none of the options available will provide total resolution of the problem, the 
Council and Community Planning partners are asked to consider future funding implications and 
impact for mainstream budgets.  Community Services are examining all possible opportunities for 
ensuring the sustainability of BNS services.  As part of the sustainability strategy we will examine a 
number of options for funding from other potential sources 

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 Argyll and Bute Council is one of twelve local authorities to benefit from in The Better 
Neighbourhood Services Fund pilot project.  The purpose of the fund is to improve services in 
Scotland’s most deprived neighbourhoods.  It is intended to advance the Social Justice objectives of 
the Scottish Executive.   

3.2 Argyll and Bute has approval for two local outcome agreements. 

(1) ‘Stay Put’ Project on Coll, Colonsay, Gigha, Iona, Islay, Jura , Mull and Tiree which has as its 
main objective to allow older people to continue to live in island communities as independently 

Agenda Item 7Page 33



as possible with an acceptable quality of life by providing a range of additional services and 
support.  This is to benefit not only the older person, but their families and the island 
communities as a whole. 

(2) Community Support Network in Campbeltown, South Kintyre and Islay.  Its aim is to help to 
support and maintain elderly vulnerable adults in their own homes and communities for as long 
as possible and improve their independence and life choices.  It also supports families with 
disabled children by providing respite care and other support services to give families with a 
disabled child  an improved quality of life. 

3.3 The outcome agreements were approved by the Scottish Executive  in July 2002 and services 
commenced in November 2002.  The final expenditure from the initial 3 year allocation is 
programmed to end October 2005. The allocation for the first three years, 2002 –2005 was  £2.7m. 

3.4 Since commencement of services in November 2002 it has been necessary to revise the outcomes 
and a revised outcome agreement was agreed with the BNS Steering Group and submitted to the 
Executive and approved in January 2004.   

3.5 Following submission of the last annual report in October 2003 and the acknowledgement of the 
good progress made, the Executive have indicated that a further £900,000 will be made available in 
2004/2005, to continue the BNS work.   

3.6 This additional funding is subject to the submission of a year ‘4’ local outcome agreement.  The 
funding has to be fully expended by March 2006.  This will mean that in the financial year 2005/2006 
there will be a total of £1.7m BNSF money to be spent. 

4.     SCOTTISH EXECUTIVE GUIDANCE ON YEAR ‘4’ LOA 

4.1 The Council along with its Community Planning partners are required to decide how and where the 
Year 4 resources are to be targeted.  The year 4 LOA will need to fit with the Council’s overall 
regeneration outcome agreement including, integration of SIP areas and priorities agreed through 
the Community Ownership programme for housing. 

4.2 The purpose of the BNSF funding allocated in 2004-05 (In Argyll this will mean 2005-06) is to 
achieve the outputs and outcomes set out for year ‘4’ LOA.  Funding can be used to continue the 
existing BNSF services/projects for a longer time period and/or to enhance the scale, impact or 
duration of the most effective BNSF services/projects.  Pathfinders must continue to focus on the 
most disadvantaged communities.  

4.3 Funding should not be used to support new services/projects.  It should also not be used to fund 
capital projects with a value in excess of £50,000. 

4.4 A tender will shortly go out for an evaluation of the projects in accordance with guidance.  As it is not 
due to be completed until March 2005, this will only report on two full operational years in Argyll and 
Bute.  Decisions on year 4 LOA will have to be taken without the benefit of an evaluation. 

4.5 Recent dialogue with the Executive has confirmed that they do not wish to consider new outcomes 
or outputs but would be prepared to consider the roll out of existing BNS services to other 
geographical areas.  The Executive will not give any assurance that funding will be available for 
these new services after March 2006. 

5. SUSTAINABILITY OF SERVICES PROVIDED IN YEARS 1 – 3 

5.1 Local authorities and their Community Planning partners will be expected to demonstrate a financial 
commitment to sustaining effective BNSF services/projects in the future.  The 2003-04 and 
subsequent Annual Reports are required to provide evidence of this commitment.  The annual report 
has to be submitted by end of September 2004 along with the Year ‘4’ LOA and will therefore require 
to be completed by end of July. 

5.2 Discussion is therefore required on the sustainability, or otherwise, of BNS services after Executive 
ring-fenced funding is withdrawn.   

5.3 The main areas of expenditure for services currently provided to deliver the outputs have estimated 
annual revenue costs amounting to £889,636.  Details of the projects and service outputs in place to 
achieve the agreed outcomes are included at Appendix 1. 

Page 34



6.  YEAR ‘4’ LOCAL OUTCOME AGREEMENT 

6.1 Taking account of the Scottish Executive guidance and the limited time available to both develop 
and deliver services with the additional funding, it is proposed that the Year ‘4’ LOA focuses 
attention on those wards which are highlighted as being amongst the most deprived and which do 
not currently benefit from BNSF.   

6.2 The report on deprivation and social exclusion recently produced for the Community Planning 
Partnership makes specific reference to the high proportion of older people in Argyll and Bute.  Five 
wards in particular, are identified in Bute & Cowal have high numbers of older people with over a 
quarter of the ward population aged 65 and over.   

6.3    The report acknowledges that services for older people are under pressure and there are cases of 
older people struggling with severe problems in isolated conditions.  The issues highlighted are: 

Confusion over benefits, 
Lack of information and information systems, 
Loss of mobility, personal and vehicular, created barriers to social interaction, health care and 
shopping. 

6.4  All these issues have been addressed through the development of the BNS projects for older people 
in South Kintyre and the Atlantic Islands and can be addressed in Bute and Cowal if the services are 
expanded to this area. 

6.5 On this basis it is proposed that the services for older people be developed in 5 wards in Bute & 
Cowal which feature at the top of the deprivation study: Bute North, Bute Central, Milton, Ardenslate 
and Holy Loch.  The expansion of the project to the wider Bute and Cowal community would not fulfil 
the requirement to focus on the most deprived areas and to include other deprived areas in Argyll 
and Bute would dilute the effectiveness and impact of the resources available. 

6.6 The outcomes set out in the Year ‘4’ LOA will remain the same as the existing LOA’s.  These 
outcomes are consistant with priorities identified in both the Community Planning Partnership Action 
Plan, Joint Health Improvement Plan and the Corporate Plan. These are: 

For Older People: 

Increase in number of older people supported to live in their own homes, 
Increase benefit uptake, 
Increase and improve leisure, recreational and social choices with greater uptake, 
Increased safety within the home for older people, 
Increased satisfaction of services offered. 

 For families with a disabled child: 

Increase in number of children with a disability provided with local short breaks, 
Increase in number of local support services for families with a disabled child, 
Greater satisfaction with local bespoke services, 
Increased benefit uptake, 
Establishment of a skilled carer network

6.7 Due to the time-limited nature of the funding, the services developed will require to harness and 
expand existing local resources rather than create additional staff to deliver additional services. 

6.8 Services for families with a disabled child will be developed across all parts of Argyll due to the wide 
geographic spread of relatively small numbers of families.  Details of the numbers recorded across 
the authority are shown in the table below: 

LOCALITY NO OF CHILDREN % OF POPULATION 

Helensburgh & Lomond 461 3.8% 

Cowal 118 3.8% 

Bute 33 2.2% 

North Argyll 90 2.1% 

Mid Argyll 35 1.5% 

Kintyre 45 2.0% 

Islay 17 2.0% 
Source: Argyll and Clyde NHS Board

Page 35



7. CONCLUSION 

7.1 The level of funding available in 2005/2006 provides the Council and its Community Planning 
partners with an opportunity to develop and improve services for older people and families with 
disabled children and raise levels of satisfaction with service provision. 

7.2 However, investment in these services may result in service users having their expectations raised 
and consequently if the provision of the service is only for a limited period of time, the net result  may 
be an overall increase in dissatisfaction if services are then withdrawn at March 2006.   

7.3 Scottish Executive short-term funding initiatives are creating significant difficulties for local authority 
budget management and service planning with Community Planning Partners. 

Douglas Hendry 
Director Community Services 
19

th
 June 2004 

Page 36



 
1

B
ET

TB
ET

TE
R

 N
EI

G
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

 S
ER

VI
C

ES
 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
B

ET
TE

R
 N

EI
G

H
B

O
U

R
H

O
O

D
 S

ER
VI

C
ES

 –
 S

TA
Y 

PU
T 

A
N

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
SU

PP
O

R
T 

N
ET

W
O

R
K

 P
R

O
JE

C
TS

 
O

U
TP

U
T 

R
EP

O
R

TS
 

  A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t R
at

in
g 

* 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

fu
lly

 a
ch

ie
ve

d,
 2

  l
ar

ge
ly

 a
ch

ie
ve

d,
 3

 p
ar

tia
lly

 a
ch

ie
ve

d,
 4

 n
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

d,
 5

  O
n 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t Y
ea

r 3
 

 D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 o
ut

pu
ts

 
Se

rv
ic

e/
Pr

oj
ec

t/A
ct

iv
ity

 
O

ut
pu

t 
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t *

(R
at

in
g)

 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
  

Th
em

e:
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e/

 S
ta

y 
Pu

t 
  

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
f C

om
m

un
ity

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
W

or
ke

rs
 

2 
W

or
ke

rs
 re

cr
ui

te
d 

on
 M

ul
l, 

Ju
ra

, G
ig

ha
, I

sl
ay

 a
nd

 T
ire

e.
  A

 
w

or
ke

r w
as

 re
cr

ui
te

d 
on

 C
ol

l b
ut

 re
si

gn
ed

 a
fte

r o
ne

 w
ee

k 
as

 
di

d 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

w
or

ke
rs

 o
n 

Ti
re

e.
  W

e 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

no
t b

ee
n 

ab
le

 to
 re

cr
ui

t o
n 

C
ol

on
sa

y.
  R

ec
ru

itm
en

t d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

on
 th

e 
is

la
nd

s 
ha

ve
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 im

pa
ct

ed
 o

n 
ou

r a
bi

lit
y 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
H

ai
rd

re
ss

er
 fo

r G
ig

ha
 

4 
U

na
bl

e 
to

 a
ttr

ac
t a

ny
on

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
is

 s
er

vi
ce

.  
H

ai
rd

re
ss

in
g 

no
w

 a
cc

es
se

d 
of

f t
he

 is
la

nd
 w

ith
 h

el
p 

of
 

w
he

el
ch

ai
r a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
ve

hi
cl

e.
 

S
ho

pp
in

g/
G

ar
de

ni
ng

/W
in

do
w

 c
le

an
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 

4 
Th

is
 s

er
vi

ce
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

pu
rs

ue
d.

  C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
C

ar
e 

&
 R

ep
ai

r a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
es

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

K
ee

pi
ng

 in
 to

uc
h 

S
er

vi
ce

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

3 
Th

e 
K

ee
pi

ng
 in

 T
ou

ch
 S

er
vi

ce
” o

pe
ra

te
s 

on
 M

ul
l, 

Io
na

, 
G

ig
ha

 a
nd

 J
ur

a 
an

d 
w

ill
 c

om
m

en
ce

 Is
la

y 
an

d 
Ti

re
e 

m
id

 J
ul

y.
H

ea
lth

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t P

ro
je

ct
 o

n 
Is

la
y 

an
d 

Ju
ra

 
3 

Th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
im

s 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

un
di

ag
no

se
d 

ill
ne

ss
es

 in
 o

ld
er

 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 re
fe

r t
o 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f a

ge
nc

ie
s 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 th
e 

pe
rs

on
s 

ne
ed

s.
  A

im
s 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
45

0 
ol

de
r p

eo
pl

e 
ov

er
 a

 
pe

rio
d 

of
 1

8 
m

on
th

s.
 

V
en

al
in

k 
M

ed
ic

at
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
s 

1 
6 

pa
tie

nt
s 

on
 Is

la
y 

an
d 

14
 p

at
ie

nt
s 

on
 T

ire
e.

  P
la

ce
s 

in
 th

es
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 fu

lly
 u

se
d.

 
P

od
ia

try
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r l
oc

al
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 c
ar

er
s 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
H

om
e 

B
as

ed
 S

up
po

rt
 

5 
U

nd
er

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
w

ith
 H

ea
lth

 –
 to

 c
om

m
en

ce
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

S
ep

t/O
ct

 2
00

4 
P

ro
vi

de
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t t
o 

ke
ep

 p
eo

pl
e 

at
 h

om
e 

w
he

re
 

S
W

 &
 H

ea
lth

 b
ud

ge
t f

ul
ly

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 

 
1 

 

Page 37



 
2

Se
rv

ic
e/

Pr
oj

ec
t/A

ct
iv

ity
 

O
ut

pu
t 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t *
 

(R
at

in
g)

 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
  

Th
em

e:
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e/

 S
ta

y 
Pu

t  
S

ho
rt 

br
ea

ks
 fo

r c
ar

er
s 

Ex
te

nd
 s

ho
rt

 b
re

ak
s 

fo
r c

ar
er

s 
3 

M
ul

l a
nd

 G
ig

ha
 O

W
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ca
re

rs
 w

ith
 s

ho
rtb

re
ak

s 
in

 th
e 

ho
m

e.
  R

ec
ru

itm
en

t p
ro

bl
em

s 
ha

ve
 d

el
ay

ed
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

. 
In

cr
ea

se
 lu

nc
h 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 c

lu
b 

pl
ac

es
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

lu
nc

h 
cl

ub
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l o
n 

ea
ch

 is
la

nd
. 

1   

Lu
nc

h 
an

d 
S

oc
ia

l c
lu

bs
 n

ow
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l o
n 

G
ig

ha
, I

on
a,

 Is
la

y,
 

Ju
ra

, M
ul

l a
nd

 T
ire

e 
– 

A
 to

ta
l o

f 1
52

 p
eo

pl
e 

at
te

nd
in

g 
9 

lo
ca

tio
ns

.

C
om

pu
te

r t
ra

in
in

g 
on

 M
ul

l/I
sl

ay
/C

ol
l 

4 
D

ig
ita

l C
om

m
un

iti
es

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
Li

ve
 M

us
ic

 T
ou

r 
2 

To
ur

 2
00

3/
4 

co
nc

er
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 (8

) M
ul

l, 
(1

) G
ig

ha
, (

5)
 Is

la
y,

 (2
) 

Ju
ra

.  
C

ol
l, 

C
ol

on
sa

y 
an

d 
Ti

re
e 

20
04

/5
. 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f w
he

el
ch

ai
r a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
ve

hi
cl

es
 fo

r s
ta

ff 
&

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

In
cr

ea
se

 n
um

be
r o

f 
so

ci
al

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 tr
an

sp
or

t 

2 
Fo

ur
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

fo
r G

ig
ha

, J
ur

a,
 &

 M
ul

l. 
 T

hr
ee

 
m

or
e 

ar
e 

on
 o

rd
er

 fo
r I

sl
ay

 a
nd

 T
ire

e.
  V

eh
ic

le
s 

fo
r I

sl
ay

 a
nd

 T
ire

e 
w

ill 
be

 a
rri

vi
ng

 in
 J

ul
y.

  V
eh

ic
le

s 
w

ill 
no

t b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
n 

C
ol

l a
nd

 
C

ol
on

sa
y 

as
 th

er
e 

w
as

 in
su

ffi
ci

en
t e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
fu

lly
 u

til
is

ed
. 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
oa

ds
ho

w
 

2 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 2
00

3.
  V

er
y 

po
si

tiv
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 fr
om

 P
en

si
on

s 
S

er
vi

ce
. 

P
la

nn
in

g 
R

oa
d 

S
ho

w
 2

00
4 

to
 s

ta
rt 

on
 2

3rd
 A

ug
us

t a
nd

 fi
ni

sh
 o

n 
13

th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r –
 1

2 
ve

nu
es

 o
n 

8 
is

la
nd

s.
  7

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g.

B
en

ef
its

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r l

oc
al

 fr
on

t l
in

e 
st

af
f 

M
ax

im
is

e 
B

en
ef

it 
U

pt
ak

e 

2 
7 

O
W

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
cr

ui
te

d 
an

d 
5 

ha
ve

 re
ce

iv
ed

 B
en

ef
its

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
– 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 to
 b

e 
or

ga
ni

se
d 

fo
r r

em
ai

ni
ng

 tw
o 

an
d 

3 
st

af
f y

et
 to

 b
e 

re
cr

ui
te

d.
 

Is
la

y 
an

d 
Ju

ra
 A

dv
ic

e 
C

en
tre

  
 

3 
H

av
e 

tra
in

ed
 3

 v
ol

un
te

er
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 

as
si

st
an

ce
 o

n 
be

ne
fit

s 
to

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e.
  A

im
 to

 re
ac

h 
32

6 
pe

op
le

 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

4 

C
ar

ry
 o

ut
 h

om
e 

sa
fe

ty
 s

ur
ve

ys
, p

ro
vi

de
 s

af
et

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t  

In
cr

ea
se

 s
af

et
y 

at
 

ho
m

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
ho

m
e 

sa
fe

ty
 c

he
ck

s 
an

d 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 S
M

A
R

T 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

3 
H

om
e 

sa
fe

ty
 a

dv
is

or
 –

 1
41

 v
is

its
 to

 d
at

e.
  T

ra
in

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r 

S
M

A
R

T 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 c
om

m
en

ce
d 

M
ay

’0
4.

 

C
on

su
lt 

on
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

In
cr

ea
se

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

of
fe

re
d 

3 
U

se
r G

ro
up

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

 
2nd

 Q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
en

d 
of

 J
ul

y.
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 38



 
3

 
Ta

bl
e 

B
2:

 D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 o
ut

pu
ts

  C
om

m
un

ity
 S

up
po

rt
 N

et
w

or
k 

Se
rv

ic
e/

Pr
oj

ec
t/A

ct
iv

ity
 

O
ut

pu
t 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t *
 

(R
at

in
g)

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
  

Th
em

e:
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e/

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

up
po

rt
 N

et
w

or
k 

K
ee

pi
ng

 in
 to

uc
h 

S
er

vi
ce

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

1 
14

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
ha

ve
 u

se
d 

th
is

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 e

nd
 M

ay
 a

nd
 a

 
fu

rth
er

 4
 o

ld
er

 c
ar

er
s 

be
ne

fit
te

d 
fro

m
 a

 b
re

ak
  

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
f c

om
m

un
ity

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
w

or
ke

rs
 

1 
5 

fu
ll-

tim
e 

C
O

 w
or

ke
rs

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

04
  

P
ho

ne
ar

ou
nd

 
1 

S
er

vi
ce

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d,

 w
ith

 8
 c

lie
nt

s 
us

in
g 

ea
ch

 w
ee

k 
 

B
at

hi
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

 
4 

In
iti

al
 p

la
ns

 w
er

e 
to

 c
om

pl
im

en
t a

 n
ew

 c
om

m
un

ity
 b

at
hi

ng
 

se
rv

ic
e 

by
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 b
at

hi
ng

 w
ith

 d
ay

-c
ar

e 
fo

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
ls

 
w

he
re

 th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 th
at

 b
at

hi
ng

 c
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
sa

fe
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
at

 h
om

e.
 W

e 
ha

d 
to

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
po

si
tio

n 
w

he
n 

th
e 

ba
th

in
g 

at
 h

om
e 

pr
oj

ec
t d

id
 n

ot
 p

ro
ce

ed
, a

nd
 h

av
e 

no
w

 a
lte

re
d 

ou
r p

la
ns

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
lim

ite
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 

se
rv

ic
e 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 
D

is
pe

ns
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
S

ou
th

en
d 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
H

om
e 

B
as

ed
 S

up
po

rt
 

1 
Fi

rs
t r

et
ur

ns
 s

ho
w

 s
er

vi
ce

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
5 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

 
S

le
ep

ov
er

 H
ou

se
 3

0 
w

ks
 p

.a
. 

5 
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
ob

ta
in

ed
 a

nd
 w

or
k 

on
 a

lte
ra

tio
ns

 in
 

pr
og

re
ss

. H
ou

se
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fro

m
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

4 
C

ar
er

s 
Lu

nc
h 

C
lu

b 
5 

C
am

pb
el

to
w

n 
gr

ou
ps

 to
 s

ta
rt 

on
ce

 N
et

w
or

k 
C

en
tre

 p
re

m
is

es
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
(A

ug
us

t 2
00

4)
  

D
em

en
tia

 G
ro

up
 fo

rtn
ig

ht
ly

 

Ex
te

nd
 s

ho
rt

 b
re

ak
s 

fo
r c

ar
er

s 

5 
C

am
pb

el
to

w
n 

gr
ou

ps
 to

 s
ta

rt 
on

ce
 N

et
w

or
k 

C
en

tre
 p

re
m

is
es

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

(A
ug

us
t 2

00
4)

 
H

ea
rin

g 
Lo

ss
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

ss
io

n 
1 

H
el

d 
A

ug
us

t ’
03

.  
H

ea
rin

g 
eq

ui
pm

en
t d

is
pl

ay
ed

 a
t 7

 ro
ad

sh
ow

s 
an

d 
si

gh
t 

im
pa

irm
en

t s
ta

nd
 a

t 4
 ro

ad
sh

ow
s.

 7
 re

fe
rr

al
s 

m
ad

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

he
ar

in
g 

an
d/

or
 s

ig
ht

 lo
ss

 fr
om

 ro
ad

sh
ow

s.
 

S
W

 fo
r D

ea
f P

eo
pl

e 
al

so
 a

tte
nd

ed
 S

K
 S

en
io

rs
 F

or
um

 to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t. 

  
Lo

cu
m

 O
T 

S
up

po
rt 

1 
20

 w
ee

ks
 lo

cu
m

 re
su

lte
d 

in
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 n

um
be

r o
f o

ld
er

 
pe

op
le

 o
n 

O
T 

w
ai

tin
g 

lis
t f

ro
m

 1
55

 to
 8

 
P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
T 

eq
ui

p 

A
id

s 
&

 A
da

pt
at

io
ns

1 
B

et
te

r A
id

s 
an

d 
A

da
pt

at
io

ns
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 8

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

Page 39



 
4

Se
rv

ic
e/

Pr
oj

ec
t/A

ct
iv

ity
 

O
ut

pu
t 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t *
 

(R
at

in
g)

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
  

Th
em

e:
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e/

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

up
po

rt
 N

et
w

or
k 

C
ar

ry
 o

ut
 H

om
e 

S
af

et
y 

su
rv

ey
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

sa
fe

ty
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
2 

H
om

e 
S

af
et

y 
O

ffi
ce

r h
as

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 1

4 
ch

ec
ks

 in
 S

K
 (J

ul
y 

20
03

-
A

pr
il 

20
04

) 
H

om
e 

S
af

et
y 

O
ffi

ce
r c

am
e 

to
 ro

ad
sh

ow
s 

an
d 

to
ok

 re
fe

rr
al

s.
 

Ar
ra

ng
ed

 fo
r a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t S

K
 S

en
io

rs
 F

or
um

. 4
 d

ire
ct

 re
fe

rr
al

s 
by

 
B

N
S

 (o
ne

 u
nd

er
 6

0)
 

S
le

ep
ov

er
 H

ou
se

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 d

em
on

st
ra

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
y 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l t
ra

in
in

g 
5 

A
s 

ab
ov

e,
 h

ou
se

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fro
m

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
4 

R
ec

ru
it 

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

w
or

ke
rs

 

In
cr

ea
se

 s
af

et
y 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ho
m

e 
fo

r o
ld

er
 

pe
op

le
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

SM
A

R
T 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

1 
5 

fu
ll-

tim
e 

C
O

 w
or

ke
rs

 re
cr

ui
te

d 
as

 a
bo

ve
 a

nd
 tr

ai
ne

d 
to

 in
st

al
l 

an
d 

re
sp

on
d 

to
 T

el
ec

ar
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 M

ay
 2

00
4 

D
ev

el
op

 N
et

w
or

k 
C

en
tre

, w
ith

 s
oc

ia
l a

nd
 a

ct
iv

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
fo

r o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
5 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
un

de
rw

ay
, a

ct
iv

iti
es

 to
 s

ta
rt 

S
ep

t 2
00

4 

S
oc

ia
l g

ro
up

 w
ith

 T
en

an
ts

 &
 R

es
id

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
1 

C
om

m
en

ce
d 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
3 

an
d 

no
w

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 1

6 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

so
ci

al
 g

ro
up

s 
pl

ac
es

 
S

oc
ia

l g
ro

up
 S

ou
th

en
d 

1 
C

om
m

en
ce

d 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

3 
an

d 
no

w
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 1
0 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
so

ci
al

 g
ro

up
 p

la
ce

s 
P

ilo
t s

oc
ia

l g
ro

up
 in

 T
ay

in
lo

an
 

1 
C

om
m

en
ce

d 
M

ay
 2

00
4,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 1

2 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

oc
ia

l g
ro

up
 

pl
ac

es
 

P
ilo

t s
oc

ia
l g

ro
up

 in
 C

ar
ra

da
le

 
1 

C
om

m
en

ce
d 

in
 J

un
e 

20
04

, p
ro

vi
di

ng
 1

5 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

oc
ia

l g
ro

up
 

pl
ac

es
 

P
ilo

t l
un

ch
 c

lu
b 

in
 S

te
w

ar
to

n 
1 

C
om

m
en

ce
d 

in
 M

ay
 2

00
4,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 1

2 
ad

di
tio

na
l l

un
ch

 c
lu

b 
pl

ac
es

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
m

ee
tin

gs
/e

ve
nt

s 
1 

Tr
an

sp
or

t p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

S
K

 S
en

io
rs

 F
or

um
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 

Li
ve

 M
us

ic
 N

ow
! c

on
ce

rt.
 

W
he

el
ch

ai
r a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
ve

hi
cl

es
 fo

r s
ta

ff 
& 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 

In
cr

ea
se

 n
um

be
r o

f 
so

ci
al

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 tr
an

sp
or

t 

1 
2 

ve
hi

cl
es

 le
as

ed
 a

nd
 in

 re
gu

la
r u

se
 

2 
da

y 
m

on
ey

 m
at

te
rs

 c
am

pa
ig

n 
1 

H
el

d 
S

ep
t 0

3.
 

R
oa

ds
ho

w
s 

in
 o

ut
ly

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 

be
ne

fit
s 

1 
7 

R
oa

ds
ho

w
s 

he
ld

 in
 o

ut
ly

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
in

 M
ar

ch
  

20
04

, a
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t s
om

e 
ev

en
ts

 p
oo

r a
nd

 a
t o

th
er

s 
re

as
on

ab
le

  
B

en
ef

its
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r f
ro

nt
 li

ne
 s

ta
ff 

 

M
ax

im
is

e 
B

en
ef

it 
U

pt
ak

e 

3 
`In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
to

 b
en

ef
its

’ d
ay

 fo
r a

ll 
C

om
m

un
ity

 O
ut

re
ac

h 
w

or
ke

rs
 

C
on

su
lt 

on
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

1 
S

ur
ve

ys
 ta

ke
n 

ou
t t

o 
ex

is
tin

g 
gr

ou
ps

 a
nd

 ro
ad

sh
ow

s,
 w

ith
 w

or
ke

rs
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
as

si
st

an
ce

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e.

  
D

ev
el

op
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
D

ro
p 

in
 C

en
tre

  
2 

C
en

tre
 o

pe
ne

d 
M

ay
 2

00
4,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
on

 ri
gh

ts
 a

nd
 e

nt
itl

em
en

ts
, r

es
ou

rc
es

, l
oc

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

co
nt

ac
ts

 
an

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
   

S
up

po
rt 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 S

ou
th

 K
in

ty
re

 S
en

io
rs

 F
or

um
  

In
cr

ea
se

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

of
fe

re
d 

3 
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 m

in
ut

e 
se

cr
et

ar
y 

an
d 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l s
up

po
rt 

Ta
bl

e 
B

2:
 D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 o

ut
pu

ts
 

Page 40



 
5

Se
rv

ic
e/

Pr
oj

ec
t/A

ct
iv

ity
 

O
ut

pu
t 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t *
 

(R
at

in
g)

 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
  

Th
em

e:
 F

am
ili

es
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

le
d 

ch
ild

re
n/

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

up
po

rt
 N

et
w

or
k 

S
ou

th
 K

in
ty

re
. I

nd
iv

id
ua

l s
ho

rt 
br

ea
ks

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

up
 to

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
18

 y
ea

rs
 

1 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

fro
m

 N
ov

 0
3.

   
10

 d
is

ab
le

d 
ch

ild
re

n 
no

w
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

re
gu

la
r 1

-to
-1

 s
ho

rt 
br

ea
ks

 a
t 

en
d 

A
pr

il 
20

04
.  

Y
ea

r t
o 

en
d 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4,

 1
91

 s
ho

rt 
br

ea
k 

se
ss

io
ns

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
  

W
he

el
ch

ai
r a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
fo

r s
up

po
rt 

st
af

f a
nd

 
cl

ie
nt

s 
1 

2 
ve

hi
cl

es
 le

as
ed

 a
nd

 in
 d

ai
ly

 u
se

 

C
en

tre
 b

as
ed

 (o
r a

lte
rn

at
iv

e)
 to

 ru
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

5 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

un
de

rw
ay

, a
ct

iv
iti

es
 to

 s
ta

rt 
S

ep
t 2

00
4 

S
up

po
rti

ng
 In

te
gr

at
io

n 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
/a

ct
iv

iti
es

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

12
+ 

ye
ar

s 
w

ith
 S

ou
th

 K
in

ty
re

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

ch
oo

ls
. 

1 
2 

da
y 

D
ru

m
m

in
g 

w
or

ks
ho

p 
he

ld
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

3,
 5

 d
is

ab
le

d 
ch

ild
re

n 
to

ok
 p

ar
t a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

tte
nd

ed
 b

y 
32

 p
ar

en
ts

/fa
m

ily
/fr

ie
nd

s.
  

C
ra

fty
 C

ap
er

s 
1 

P
ro

vi
de

d 
w

or
ke

rs
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

an
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 6
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

to
 a

tte
nd

 8
 

cr
af

t s
es

si
on

s 
or

ga
ni

se
d 

by
 A

+B
 A

rts
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t O

ffi
ce

r. 

In
tro

du
ct

or
y 

H
ol

id
ay

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

5-
18

 
ye

ar
s 

1 
20

03
/4

 1
3 

se
ss

io
ns

 fo
r C

hi
ld

re
n,

 5
 s

es
si

on
s 

fo
r C

ar
er

s.
 

20
04

/5
 2

2 
se

ss
io

ns
 fo

r p
rim

ar
y 

ag
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

17
 s

es
si

on
s 

fo
r 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
ag

e 
ch

ild
re

n.
 

Li
ve

 M
us

ic
 N

ow
! w

or
ks

ho
ps

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

1 
Fu

nd
in

g 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

nd
 2

 d
ay

, p
ar

tic
ip

at
iv

e 
w

or
ks

ho
p 

or
ga

ni
se

d,
 

(M
ar

ch
 2

00
4)

 

S
en

so
ry

 R
oo

m
 in

 c
en

tre
 (o

r m
ob

ile
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e)
 

5 
S

en
so

ry
 ro

om
 w

ill 
be

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

N
et

w
or

k 
C

en
tre

.  
Is

la
y 

– 
co

nt
ra

ct
ua

l h
ou

rs
 fo

r c
ar

e 
w

or
ke

rs
  

D
ev

el
op

 h
om

e-
ba

se
d;

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 b
as

ed
; 

ce
nt

re
 b

as
ed

 a
ct

iv
ity

 
sh

or
t b

re
ak

s 
fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
&

 fa
m

ili
es

 

4 
O

nc
e 

su
rv

ey
s 

co
m

pl
et

ed
, s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 o
nl

y 
in

cl
ud

ed
 s

ho
rt 

br
ea

k 
ho

ur
s 

fo
r 2

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
th

er
ef

or
e 

bu
lk

 o
f w

or
k 

no
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

an
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l h

ou
rs

 n
ot

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

.  
H

ou
rs

 fo
r o

ne
 c

hi
ld

 n
ow

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 fr

om
 e

xt
er

na
l p

ro
vi

de
r. 

 
 

Is
la

y 
– 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
in

di
vi

du
al

 fa
m

ili
es

 
 

3 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

on
 Is

la
y 

be
in

g 
pr

ov
id

ed
 w

ith
 tr

an
sp

or
t (

1)
, E

qu
ip

m
en

t (
3)

 
an

d 
fin

an
ce

 fo
r e

sc
or

t f
or

 h
ol

id
ay

 (1
). 

 

Page 41



 
6

 
Se

rv
ic

e/
Pr

oj
ec

t/A
ct

iv
ity

 
O

ut
pu

t 
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t *

 
(R

at
in

g)
 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 

Th
em

e:
 F

am
ili

es
 w

ith
 d

is
ab

le
d 

ch
ild

re
n/

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

up
po

rt
 N

et
w

or
k 

C
en

tre
-b

as
ed

 (o
r a

lte
rn

at
iv

e)
 w

eb
/v

id
eo

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
2 

C
en

tre
 o

pe
ne

d 
M

ay
 2

00
4,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r f
am

ili
es

 
ca

rin
g 

fo
r a

 d
is

ab
le

d 
ch

ild
 o

n 
rig

ht
s 

an
d 

en
tit

le
m

en
ts

, 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ac

ts
 a

nd
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s.
 

C
en

tre
-b

as
ed

 (o
r a

lte
rn

at
iv

e)
 s

ur
ge

ry
 s

es
si

on
s 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
s 

5 
S

ur
ge

ry
 s

es
si

on
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

he
ld

 in
 th

e 
N

et
w

or
k 

C
en

tre
 fr

om
 

A
ug

us
t 2

00
4 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
ac

k 
fo

r p
ar

en
ts

 p
ro

du
ce

d 

Pr
ov

id
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n;

 
de

ve
lo

p 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ce

nt
re

 

5 
W

ill
 re

-v
is

it 
w

ith
 p

ar
en

t i
n 

Ja
n 

20
05

 o
nc

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ce

nt
re

 
ha

s 
be

en
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l f
or

 6
 m

on
th

s 
 

C
ar

e 
w

or
ke

rs
 re

cr
ui

te
d 

1 
5 

fu
ll 

tim
e 

C
O

 w
or

ke
rs

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

A
pr

il 
20

04
.  

9 
B

an
k 

w
or

ke
rs

 a
ls

o 
ap

po
in

te
d.

   
C

or
e 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r a

ll 
ce

nt
re

/n
et

w
or

k 
ca

re
 w

or
ke

rs
 

R
ec

ru
it 

up
 to

 1
5 

ne
w

 c
ar

e 
w

or
ke

rs
 

3 
C

or
e 

tra
in

in
g 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

on
ce

 
w

or
ke

rs
 in

 p
os

t. 
A

ll 
C

O
 w

or
ke

rs
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 S

V
Q

 le
ve

l 3
 

an
d 

m
od

ul
es

.  
B

en
ef

it 
ch

ec
k 

 - 
of

fe
re

d 
to

 a
ll 

ca
re

rs
 ta

ki
ng

 p
ar

t i
n 

su
rv

ey
 

1 
Th

is
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

of
fe

re
d 

to
 a

ll 
fa

m
ili

es
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

s.
 7

 o
ut

 o
f 2

5 
in

iti
al

 fa
m

ili
es

 h
av

e 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

ly
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

in
cr

ea
se

s.
 

B
en

ef
it 

tra
in

in
g 

fo
r f

ro
nt

 li
ne

 s
ta

ff 

M
ax

im
is

e 
B

en
ef

it 
U

pt
ak

e 

3 
O

ne
 d

ay
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 c

ou
rs

e`
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
to

 B
en

ef
its

’ p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r 
al

l C
O

 w
or

ke
rs

  
C

on
su

lt 
on

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
In

cr
ea

se
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

ffe
re

d 

1 
25

 In
iti

al
 s

ur
ve

ys
 (S

ou
th

 K
in

ty
re

) a
nd

 1
0 

(Is
la

y)
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

O
ct

 2
00

3,
 re

su
lts

 c
om

pi
le

d 
an

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 

m
ad

e.
 8

 n
ew

 s
ur

ve
ys

 (S
ou

th
 K

in
ty

re
) c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

M
ay

 
20

04
, 6

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Page 42



DRAFT COMMUNITY LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

ARGYLL AND BUTE 

1. Introduction

1.1 The second draft of the Community Learning and Development Strategy is attached as appendix 2. 

1.2 The Executive Summary is attached as appendix 1. 

1.3 Partners are asked to comment on the following issues contained in the Executive Summary.  If partners 
also wish to comment more widely on the points in the full strategy, not highlighted in the Summary, these 
comments will be welcome. 

2. Issues 

2.1 The Executive Summary highlights the three national priorities of: 

* Achievement Through Learning for Adults 
* Achievement Through Learning for Young People 
* Achievement Through Building Community Capacity 

The Summary also indicates broadly what will be included under each heading.  Any comments on these 
priorities will be welcomed.  If partners feel there are any omissions it will be important to identify these at 
an early stage. 

2.2 The Executive Summary highlights the proposed geographical targeting of the strategy and the reasons 
for this targeting.  Any comments on this would be welcome. 

2.3 Comments on the proposed thematic targeting would also help in shaping further drafts. 

2.4 An evaluation of the operation of the four local geographical community learning plans has provided 
valuable lesson for the development of the revised strategy.  These issues are identified in the Executive 
Summary and further comment would be helpful. 

3. Consultation 

3.1 Consultation is currently taking place locally on the draft strategy.  The results of this consultation will be 
reflected in a further draft of the strategy. 

3.2 It is hoped to conduct a last round of consultation on this near to final version in late July/August.  
Partners will be asked to endorse a final version in August for submission to the Executive at the 
beginning of September. 

3.3 It would assist in this process to bring a near to final version of the strategy back to the Community 
Planning Partnership and/or Management Committee, depending on meeting dates, for endorsement or 
amendment. 

J McCrossan 
22 June 2004 

Agenda Item 8Page 43



APPENDIX 1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Scottish Executive issued guidance in January 2004 asking Community Learning and Development 
Partnerships to produce Community Learning and Development Strategies.  These strategies are to be 
published and submitted to the Executive by 1 September 2004. 

The strategies must be agreed by all community planning partners.  They should influence and reflect the 
community plan and related strategies and should demonstrate substantial community involvement. 

The guidance identified three national priorities for community learning and development: 

Achievement through learning for adults 

Achievement through learning for young people 

Achievement through building community capacity 

Within the draft strategy the following broad priorities are identified under each of those headings. 

Achievement Through Learning For Adults

The key priorities under this heading will be: 

Implementation of the agreed priorities in the Argyll and Bute Literacy and Numeracy Action Plan. 

Establishing appropriate links to the Argyll and Bute Gaelic Development Plan. 

Implementation of adult learning priorities identified through the geographical Community Learning and 
Development Plans. 

Implementation of adult learning priorities identified through the Regeneration Outcome Agreement. 

Implementation of adult learning priorities identified through the Social Inclusion Business Plans. 

Implementation of the adult learning priorities identified through the Strategic Development Plan for the 
Community Learning and Regeneration Service. 

Priorities of all three theme groups 

Health Priorities 

Achievement Through Learning for Young People

The key priorities under this heading will be: 

Development of a Youth Strategy for Argyll and Bute in parallel with the development of the National Youth 
Strategy.

Implementation of literacy and numeracy priorities relating to young people. 

Identifying links to the Gaelic Development Plan that relate to learning for young people. 

Implementation of learning for young people priorities identified through the geographical Learning and 
Development Plans. 

Implementation of learning for young people priorities identified through the Regeneration Outcome 
Agreement. 

Implementation of learning for young people priorities identified through the Social Inclusion Business 
Plans.

Implementation of the learning for young people priorities identified through the Strategic Development 
Plan for the Community Learning and Regeneration Service. 

Priorities of all three theme groups 

Health Priorities 

Achievement Through Building Community Capacity

The key priorities under this heading will be: 

Building Community Capacity to implement the Community Planning Pilot in Cowal and Bute. 

Building Community Capacity to support the extension of the Social Inclusion areas. 

Building community capacity to support the geographical Community Learning and Development Plans. 

Building Community Capacity to support the Regeneration Outcome Agreement. 

Building Community Capacity to support the Social Inclusion Business Plans. 

Building Community Capacity to implement the priorities identified through the Strategic Development Plan 
of the Community Learning and Regeneration Service. 

Page 44



Priorities of all three theme groups 

Health Priorities 

Geographical Targeting

The Strategy also proposes geographical targeting, this has been influenced by three main functions. 

An evaluation of the four geographical Community Learning Plans 

The Deprivation Study commissioned by the Community Planning Partnership and the use of this study in 
refining the borders of existing Social Inclusion areas as part of the Transitional Process. 

The proposed Community Planning Pilot in the Bute and Cowal Area. 

There is considerable overlap in these factors as will be seen by the areas identified below: 

Dalintober/Millknowe and the other most deprived output areas in Campbeltown Central. 

East Kintyre – Output areas identified in the deprivation study.  Should also link with the Community 
Learning Plan Area. 

Islay South – Output areas identified in the deprivation study.  Discussions still underway about how work 
in this area could be best supported.  

Kirkmichael/Craigendoran and the other most deprived output areas in Helensburgh East.  This will link 
with the
Community Learning Plan Area. 

Rosneath, Clynder, Kilcreggan and Garelochhead.  These areas were highlighted in the deprivation study.  
Considerable work has also been undertaken here by Community Futures.  It is anticipated that links will be 
made between these communities and existing structures such as the Area Development Group in 
Helensburgh. 

Soroba in Oban will be expanded to take in the most deprived output areas identified by the deprivation 
study.

Tiree and Coll will continue to be targeted as a Community Learning Plan area.  Tiree has also been 
identified through the deprivation study. 

Ardenslate, West Milton and the Glebe will be expanded to take in the most deprived output areas 
identified in Dunoon Central. 

Ballochgoy will be expanded to take in the most deprived output areas in Bute, mainly Bute Central and 
Bute North.  This area is also covered by a Community Learning Plan and will also form part of the 
Community Planning Pilot. 

The Cowal area in addition to Bute will form the Community Planning Pilot area.  This will build on Social 
Inclusion work undertaken in Ballochgoy, Ardenslate, West Milton and the Glebe.  It will also build on work 
undertaken in West Cowal by ACVS and East Cowal by Community Futures. 

Thematic Targeting

There are likely to be three main focuses for thematic targeting.  These are: 

Continuing development and implementation of the Argyll and Bute Literacy/Numeracy Action Plan. 

Development of a Youth Strategy for Argyll and Bute in parallel with the development of a National Youth 
Strategy.

Ensuring that there are links to the Gaelic Development Plan.   Clearly, more detailed work will have to be 
undertaken in relation to these, in particular the second and third priorities. 

Community Learning Plans

A number of issues have been identified through consultation with the four geographical Community Learning 
Plan groups.  These need to be given further consideration in the development of the Strategy. 

These issues were: 

Need for wider partnership involvement 

Improve links to other partners agendas/targets 

Improve links to other key partnerships 

Improve links to and involvement of the community 

Consider potential of Digital Communities Project 

Improve the involvement of young people. 

In addition Community Learning Plan groups identified strengths arising from the work undertaken. 

Page 45



Where existing structures could be utilised this worked better 

Success in attracting external funding (although over dependence on short term external funding was also 
identified as a weakness) 

Effective needs assessment 

Targeting of work, particularly in Social Inclusion areas. 

In strategic terms the key issues were seen as the integration of existing partnership structures and the way in 
which community engagement would be achieved within any new structures. 

Page 46


